
PERSONNEL AND GENERAL 
PURPOSES SUB-COMMITTEE

AGENDA

Date: Wednesday, 28th June, 2017

Time: 7.00 pm

Venue: Guildhall



2

PERSONNEL AND GENERAL PURPOSES SUB-COMMITTEE 
Members of the Sub-Committee:-

Chairman: Councillor Louis Stephen (G)
Vice-Chairman: Councillor Marc Bayliss (C) and Councillor Adrian Gregson (L)

Councillor Mrs. Lucy Hodgson (C)
Councillor Chris Mitchell (C)

Councillor Joy Squires (L)
Councillor Geoff Williams (L)

C= Conservative G = Green L = Labour

Information for Members of the Public

Access to the Guildhall is via the front entrance in the High Street.  The nearest car park is 
Copenhagen Street (pay and display). If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility, 
access to the Guildhall can be gained either through the door on the right side of the forecourt as 
you face the Guildhall, or through the sliding doors at the rear of the Guildhall. There is dedicated 
disabled parking space at the rear (access via Copenhagen Street). Most meetings are held on 
the ground floor, which can be reached by using a lift.  If you are a wheelchair user or have 
restricted mobility and you wish to attend a meeting, please telephone or email the officer 
mentioned below in advance and we will make any necessary arrangements to assist your visit.

Part I of the Agenda includes items for discussion in public.  You have the right to inspect copies 
of minutes and reports on this part of the Agenda as well as background documents used in the 
preparation of these reports.  Details of the background papers appear at the foot of each report.

Part II of the Agenda (if applicable) deals with items of 'Exempt or Confidential Information' for 
which the public are excluded from the meeting and neither reports nor background papers are 
open to public inspection.

At the start of the meeting under the item 'Public Participation' up to fifteen minutes in total is 
allowed for members of the public to present a petition, ask a question or comment on any 
matter on the Agenda.  Participants need to indicate that they wish to speak by 4.30 p.m. 
on the last working day before the meeting by writing, telephoning or E-Mailing the 
officer mentioned below.

If you have any general enquires or queries about this Agenda or require any details of 
background papers, further documents or information, or to discuss arrangements for the taking 
of photographs, film, video or sound recording, please contact the Lead Officer, Julian Pugh, 
Democratic Services Administrator, Guildhall, Worcester WR1 2EY.  Telephone: 01905 
722005 (direct line); E-Mail Address:  committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk.

This agenda can be made available in large print, braille, on PC disk, tape or in a number of 
ethnic minority languages.  Please contact the above named officer for further information.

Agendas and minutes relating to all City Council Committees and Council Meetings are also 
available electronically, click on the option “Committee Minutes and Documents”, Website 
Address: worcester.gov.uk

mailto:committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk


3

Personnel and General Purposes Sub-Committee
Wednesday, 28 June 2017

AGENDA

Part 1
(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PUBLIC)

1. Appointment of Substitutes To receive details of any Members 
appointed to attend the meeting instead of 
a Member of the Sub-Committee.

2. Declarations of Interest To receive any declarations of interest.

3. Public Participation Up to a total of fifteen minutes can be 
allowed, each speaker being allocated a 
maximum of five minutes, for members of 
the public to present a petition, ask a 
question or comment on any matter on the 
Agenda or within the remit of the Sub-
Committee.

4. Corporate Director Recruitment 
Page(s): 1 - 8
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer: Mark Edwards, 

Head of People 
Services
Tel: 01905 
722042

To ask the Committee to agree to 
commence recruitment to the post of 
Corporate Director – Place.

5. Family Friendly Policy and 
Procedures 
Page(s): 9 - 70
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer: Mark Edwards, 

Head of People 
Services
Tel: 01905 
722042

That the Family Friendly Employment Policy 
and the associated six Family Friendly 
Procedures are approved by this Sub-
Committee.

6. Any Other Business Which in the opinion of the Chairman is of 
sufficient urgency as to warrant 
consideration.



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Personnel and General Purposes Sub-Committee, 28th June 2017

Report of: Head of People Services 

Subject: CORPORATE DIRECTOR RECRUITMENT

1. Recommendation

1.1 To ask the Committee to agree to commence recruitment to the post of 
Corporate Director – Place.

2. Background

2.1 Following David Blake’s appointment to the post of Managing Director we propose to 
recruit to the now vacant post of Corporate Director – Place. The proposed Job 
Description and Person Specification are attached (Appendix 1 and 2).

3. Preferred Option 

3.1 At this point we do not propose to use executive search and so have not sought 
written proposals from recruitment consultants.  We will however use our regular 
recruitment partners, West Midlands Employers to assist with marketing and 
selection support.

4. Alternative Options Considered

4.1 Given that the place portfolio is David Blake’s area of expertise consideration was 
given to deleting the director post, but it was felt that this would impact negatively 
on David’s capacity and focus on the critical role on Managing Director.

5. Implications

5.1 Financial and Budgetary Implications
The post is currently budgeted for.

5.2 Legal and Governance Implications
The post holder will be a member of the corporate leadership team and thus make a 
significant contribution to decision making capacity in the Authority.  

5.3 Risk Implications
The appointment will strengthen senior capacity and resilience.

5.4 Corporate/Policy Implications
Appointment of Corporate Directors is delegated to this committee.

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



5.5 Equality Implications
As with all recruitment processes we will need to follow a fair and open process and 
appoint on merit only.

5.6 Human Resources Implications
The Head of People Services will support the committee in following the Council’s 
recruitment policy and procedure.

5.7 Health and Safety Implications
None. 

Ward(s): All
Contact Officer: Mark Edwards, Telephone 01905 722042, 

Email mark.edwards@worcester.gov.uk
Background Papers: None

Page 2



 1

Appendix 1
WORCESTER CITY COUNCIL

JOB DESCRIPTION

Job Title: Corporate Director – Place 

Post no: TBC

Grade: Chief Officer

Post Responsible to: Managing Director  

Posts Responsible for:

1. Role of Corporate Director 

1.1 Identify, develop and direct the implementation of Council strategy in 
conjunction with leading Members, the Managing Director and other members 
of the corporate management team in order to deliver Council outcomes.

1.2 Plan and direct the Councils activities to achieve stated/agreed targets and 
standards for financial and service performance, risk, culture and legislative 
adherence.

1.3 Recruit, select and nurture Heads of Service and other colleagues within the 
Directorate.

1.4 Direct functions and performance via the Head of Service team and take 
corporate responsibility for relevant actions via the wider management team.

1.5 Visibly lead organisational culture, values and reputation within the community 
and with all employees, citizens, suppliers, and partners, statutory and official 
bodies.

1.6 Lead partnership and other joint working on behalf of the Council and 
Worcestershire as a whole.

1.7 Devise with colleagues then implement, lead and maintain excellent governance 
arrangements across the whole authority.

1.8 Report to elected Members and Committees as appropriate on organisational 
strategy, plans and performance.

1.9 Undertake other duties within his/her competence or otherwise appropriate to 
the role of Corporate Director as required.

1.10 The areas for which the Corporate Director is responsible will be kept under 
review and may change over time in response to emerging priorities and 
organisational development.

Page 3 Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1



 2

2. Specific Responsibilities
 
2.1 To lead on the development and delivery of the Councils plans for the shape of 

Worcester’s future as described in the City Plan.
 
2.2   Lead a programme of work aimed at increasing business growth and the 

numbers of high-skilled jobs in the City. 

2.3    Lead efforts to improve the sports, leisure and retail offer in the City. 
 
2.4    Lead on work to capitalise on the City’s history and heritage. 

2.5  Guide the development and implementation of the South Worcestershire 
Development Plan and related aspects of planning policy.  

2.6    Provide strategic management to the Strategic Housing, Economic 
Development, Planning Policy and Development Management Services.     

2.7    Oversee client management for the Joint Museums Service.

 

4. Political Restriction

This is a politically restricted post within the meaning of the Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989.

Version: Date:  May 2017

Page 4



 

Appendix 2
PERSON SPECIFICATION

 

POST:    Corporate Director - Place

PREPARED BY  Mark Edwards___  ______________DATE  ___Jan 16_____ ______________

ATTRIBUTES ESSENTIAL REQUIREMENTS HOW IDENTIFIED
WEIGHTING

H = HIGH (x3)
M = MEDIUM 

(x2)
L =  LOW (x1)

Education and Qualifications
 
Educated to degree level or equivalent

 
Application form

 
M

Work or Other Relevant 
Experience and Associated 
Vocational Training

 
Significant experience of leading on economic 
development and regeneration activities  for an 
organisation of comparable scope and 
complexity

Experience of working as a member of the 
corporate management team in a comparable 
organisation 

A proven track record of success at a senior 
level as a leader and a team player, with strong 
contributions to strategic organisation 
development and change

Experience of successfully driving a positive 
performance culture with systems in place to 
measure, understand and improve outcomes.

 
All application form and 
interview

 
H

P
age 5

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 2



 

Strong evidence of effective stakeholder and 
relationship management with members, partner 
organisations, communities, trade unions, 
government, public agencies and statutory 
organisations.

A successful track record of delivering effective 
and value for money services to internal and 
external customers

Substantial experience of successfully managing 
large budgets and complex projects  

Special(ist) Knowledge
 
Proven regeneration project and programme 
management skills.

The ability to interpret complex economic 
intelligence and to use this effectively in the 
formulation of strategy and policy.

Highly developed understanding of the needs 
and aspirations of business and the community.

A clear understanding of the pubic sector and 
the short, medium and long term challenges 
facing local government

A skilled and persuasive communicator with 
strong leadership, influencing and negotiating 
skills 

Strong commitment to corporate working and 
empowering others.

 
Interview

 
H

P
age 6



 

Able to demonstrate personal resilience and 
emotional intelligence in dealing with high 
demand levels

Able to take and implement tough decisions and 
handle the difficult conversations that go with 
them in a sensitive and effective way.

Job Related Skills and 
Abilities

 
Self motivated with presence and authority

Drive, commitment and energy with a strong 
leadership style which, inspires and motivates  
others 
An ability to develop and sustain a culture which 
meets the needs of partners, customers and 
staff, within a performance oriented environment

  

Physical Abilities (only if a 
justifiable requirement for 
the post)

 
No special requirements Interview and offer 

process.

Other – e.g. Availability for 
Unsocial Hours

 
Able to attend relevant meetings and events out 
of normal office hours   

  
H

P
age 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Personnel and General Purposes Sub-Committee, 28th June 2017

Report of: Head of People Services

Subject: FAMILY FRIENDLY POLICY AND PROCEDURES

1. Recommendation

1.1 That the Family Friendly Employment Policy and the associated six Family 
Friendly Procedures are approved by this Sub-Committee.

2. NEW FAMILY FRIENDLY EMPLOYMENT POLICY AND SHARED PARENTAL 
LEAVE PROCEDURE: 

The Family Friendly Employment Policy has been created to describe the full 
range of options available to employees in one place and in user friendly plain 
English.

Shared Parental Leave and Pay Procedure is a new procedure that incorporates 
employee eligibility criteria, statutory leave & pay entitlements, a simple process 
workflow & procedural forms, in line with recent legislation.

3. REVISED FAMILY FRIENDLY PROCEDURES:

Maternity Leave and Pay Procedure - Summary of changes:  Minor rewording to 
become more user friendly and updates in line with current legislation (including 
statutory pay).

Paternity Leave and Pay Procedure - Summary of changes:  Minor rewording to 
become more user friendly and updates in line with current legislation (including 
statutory pay).

Maternity / Adoption Support Leave Procedure - Summary of changes:  Minor 
rewording to become more user friendly and updates in line with current legislation.

Parental Leave Procedure - Summary of changes:  Minor rewording to become 
more user friendly and updates in line with current legislation.

Flexible Working Procedure - Summary of changes:  This policy now has 
statutory eligibility criteria applicable to all employees, not just those with child 
and/or elder care responsibilities. Minor rewording to become more user friendly

4. Preferred Option 

4.1 To adopt the new policy and procedures so that staff are clear on current eligibility 
and entitlements and we present the Council as family friendly employer.  

Page 9 Agenda Item 5



5. Alternative Options Considered

5.1 Not updating existing policies or introducing a Shared Parental Leave and Pay policy 
is not appropriate, as it could leave the Council open to the risk of possible direct 
and indirect discrimination.

5.2 The Shared Parental Leave policy could include an enhanced pay element to align 
with Council paternity leave and maternity / adoption leave and pay policies.  
Research suggests that other authorities are not taking this approach currently.

6. Implications

6.1 Financial and Budgetary Implications
The new Shared Parental Leave Procedure is likely to have minimal financial impact 
as this is enacting a recent employment law change that has so far achieved very 
low levels of take up nationally (less than 1%). 

6.2 Legal and Governance Implications
These procedures allow us to be clear on how we are complying with legislation.

6.3 Risk Implications
Not introducing a Shared Parental Leave and Pay procedure could leave the Council      

         Open to the risk of possible direct or indirect discrimination claims.

6.4 Corporate/Policy Implications
There are links to the Council’s Grievance policy, if employees feel dissatisfied with 
any decision made in respect of these procedures.  

6.5 Equality Implications
All six procedures adhere to equality and diversity legislation.

6.6 Human Resources Implications
The new policy and associated procedures help to position us as family friendly 
employee and should improve our ability to attract and retain talent.

6.7 Health and Safety Implications
Under the Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999, the Council 
has a legal obligation to ensure a healthy and safe working environment for all 
pregnant or breastfeeding employees.

Ward(s): All
Contact Officer: Mark Edwards, Telephone 01905 722042, 

Email mark.edwards@worcester.gov.uk
Background Papers: None 

Page 10



Worcester City Council

Page 1 of 5
Family Friendly Employment Policy

Worcester City Council

FAMILY FRIENDLY 
EMPLOYMENT POLICY 
MAY 2017
Title Family Friendly Employment Policy
Status Draft
Document Version V1.0
Author Catherine Simcox
Sponsor Mark Edwards
Owner People Services
Approved by
Approved date
Review frequency
Next Review:

Version History
Version Date Description
0.1 May 2017 First draft

Page 11 Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



Worcester City Council

Page 2 of 5
Family Friendly Employment Policy

Contents

1 WHAT THIS POLICY IS FOR .............................................................................................2

2 THE PROCEDURES...........................................................................................................2

3 OTHER HELP AND BENEFITS ..........................................................................................2

4 RELATED DOCUMENTS....................................................................................................2

Page 12



Worcester City Council

Page 3 of 5
Family Friendly Employment Policy

1 WHAT THIS POLICY IS FOR 

We recognise that many employees often do two jobs – they have family 
responsibilities and go to work. We want to do all we can to support our 
employees in adopting a healthy work life balance. We want our people to feel 
confident, fully motivated and able to perform to the best of their ability.  

As a caring employer, we value everyone’s contribution and have therefore 
developed a range of Family - Friendly procedures, practices and support 
mechanisms to make the work life balance that bit easier.

1.1 WHO IT APPLIES TO 

This applies to all of our employees, but some of the procedures enact 
employment legislation and require a minimum length of service.  This is 
detailed in the individual procedural documents. 

2 THE PROCEDURES     

2.1 Flexible Working
This allows employees to ask to change some aspect of their working pattern, 
for example reducing total working hours or changing the days worked.  Such 
requests are often linked to family caring responsibilities but that does not have 
to be the case.

2.2 Maternity or Adoption Leave and Pay
Employees can take up to 52 weeks leave to enjoy being a new mother or 
parent, with the knowledge that they can return to work in the same or similar 
role, whilst retaining their Terms & Conditions of Employment, benefits and 
career opportunities.

2.3 Paternity Leave and Pay
Fathers can take one or two week’s statutory leave to support the 
mother/adopter and child in the first 8 weeks after a birth or adoption.   A great 
opportunity for the new family to bond – or for the father to take the reins if 
their partner needs to put their feet up!

Page 13



Worcester City Council

Page 4 of 5
Family Friendly Employment Policy

2.4 Maternity and Adoption Support Leave and Pay
A great accompaniment to Paternity Leave and Pay.  We can offer fathers full 
pay for up to 5 days as part of your statutory paternity leave.  We know that 
every penny counts when you have a new member of the family.

2.5 Shared Parental Leave and Pay
We want to be able to give parents and adopters more flexibility in the first 
year with their child. They may be able to share up to 50 weeks of statutory 
leave with their partner.  It could help partners both financially and in terms of 
time to enjoy the parental experience.

2.6 Parental Leave
Parents can take up to 4 weeks unpaid leave every year (from when a baby is 
born or on adoption, until they are 18 years old) up to a maximum of 18 weeks 
(for the welfare needs of the child). 

 
3 OTHER HELP AND BENEFITS 

3.1 Reducing the cost of childcare
Our Childcare Voucher scheme can help reduce the financial burden because 
employees don’t pay income tax on the amount of vouchers they buy each 
month.

3.2 Support when it’s needed
Employees can access our 24/7 confidential and independent helpline on 0800 
282 193 to help with any emotional, health or practical needs of being a new 
parent.  The helpline has a wealth of free expertise at the end of a line.

3.3 Learning and development
We have an array of online and workshop learning to support employees on 
their return to work.  We can help people refresh or develop new skills.

3.4 Family Health
Our Orchard Healthcare plan offers help with everyday medical costs.  
Additionally Maternity / Paternity Grants are payable on the birth of each child.

Page 14



Worcester City Council

Page 5 of 5
Family Friendly Employment Policy

3.5 Agile Working practices
Give flexibility around time, location and role whilst at work, to meet the values 
and vision of the Council

4 RELATED DOCUMENTS

 Flexible Working Procedure 
 Maternity or Adoption Leave and Pay Procedure
 Paternity Leave and Pay Procedure
 Maternity and Adoption Support leave and Pay Procedure 
 Shared Parental leave and Pay Procedure 
 Parental leave Procedure 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Worcester City Council

Worcester City Council
SHARED PARENTAL LEAVE & 
PAY PROCEDURE

Version History

Version Date Description

0.1 3.6.15

0.2 14.12.15

 0.3 24.03.17

Title Shared Parental Leave & Pay Procedure

Status Draft

Document Version V3

Author Catherine Simcox

Sponsor Mark Edwards

Owner Human Resources

Approved by

Approved date

Review frequency

Next Review:

Page 17 Agenda Item 5
Appendix 2



2

Contents
1. What is Shared Parental Leave and Pay?.................................................3
2. Do I qualify for Shared Parental Leave (SPL)?..........................................3
3. Do I qualify for Statutory Shared Parental Pay (ShPP)? .............................3
4. What are my entitlements? ...................................................................3
5. Can I cancel the decision to end my maternity or adoption leave? ..............4
6. How do I apply for Shared Parental Leave and Pay? .................................5
7. What other information might I need to provide? .....................................5
8. How do I book leave?...........................................................................5
9. What are Shared Parental Leave in touch (SPLIT) days? ...........................6
10.    Should the Council and I  maintain contact during Shared Parental Leave? .

......................................................................................................6
11. What is my contractual status whilst on SPL, and on return to work? .......6
12. What about my pension? ...................................................................6
13. What about the subscriptions I pay through my salary? .........................7
14. What annual leave am I entitled to? ....................................................7
15. What are Childcare Vouchers? ............................................................7
16. Am I eligible for Tax Credits?..............................................................7
17. What if I am unhappy with a decision on Shared Parental Leave? ............7
18. Our other Family Friendly Procedures. .................................................8
19. Shared Parental Leave & Pay  - Forms .................................................8
20. The Shared Parental Leave process at a glance .....................................9
21. APPENDIX 1 ...................................................................................10

Commonly Used Abbreviations

Expected week of childbirth/confinement EWC
Maternity Allowance MA
Statutory Adoption Pay SAP
Statutory Shared Parental Pay ShPP
Statutory Maternity Pay SMP
Shared Parental Leave SPL
Shared Parental Leave Keep in Touch Days SPLIT
Statutory Paternity Pay SPP

Page 18



3

Shared Parental Leave & Pay Procedure

1. What is Shared Parental Leave and Pay?

Shared Parental Leave enables eligible parents to share the care of your child 
during the first year of birth or adoption.  You both may also be entitled to some 
Shared Parental Pay.

Shared Parental Leave can only be used by two people:
 The mother/adopter and
 The spouse, civil partner or partner of the child’s mother/adopter.

2. Do I qualify for Shared Parental Leave (SPL)?

For you to qualify for SPL:

 You will have continuous employment with Worcester City Council for at 
least 26 weeks at the end of the 15th week before the due date/matching 
date.

 You must share responsibility for your child with one of the following:
o your husband, wife, civil partner or joint adopter
o the child’s other parent
o your partner (if they live with you and the child)

 You or your partner must be eligible for maternity pay or leave, adoption 
pay or leave or Maternity Allowance.

 You must remain employed by the Council during each period of SPL.

For your partner to qualify for SPL:

During the 66 weeks before the EWC (or the week you’re matched with your 
adopted child) your partner must:

 have been working for at least 26 weeks (they don’t need to be in a row)
 have earned at least £390 in total, in 13 of the 66 weeks (add up the 

highest paying weeks, they don’t need to be in a row). This can be as an 
employee, worker or self-employed person. 

 Your partner doesn’t have to be working at the date of birth or when you 
start SPL or ShPP.

3. Do I qualify for Statutory Shared Parental Pay (ShPP)?

You qualify for ShPP if:

 You are eligible for SMP or SAP
 You are eligible for SPP and your partner is eligible for SMP, SAP or MA

4. What are my entitlements?

If you qualify, and you or your partner end maternity or adoption leave and 
SMP, SAP or MA pay early, then you can:

Page 19



4

 take the balance (i.e. 50 weeks or less) of the 52 weeks of maternity or 
adoption leave as Shared Parental Leave (SPL)

 take the rest of the 39 weeks of maternity or adoption pay (or Maternity 
Allowance) as Statutory Shared Parental Pay (ShPP)

Shared Parental Leave (SPL)

You can only start Shared Parental Leave or Shared Parental Pay once the child 
has been born or placed for adoption.

If you are a mother, you must take your compulsory 2 weeks of maternity leave 
following the birth.  If you are the person claiming adoption pay, you must take 
at least the first 2 weeks of adoption leave.

If you are the mother (or the person getting adoption leave), you must either:

 return to work, which ends any maternity or adoption leave
 give the Council ‘binding notice’ of the date when you plan to end their 

leave (you can’t normally change the date you give in binding notice)
 or if you do not get leave, you must end any maternity pay, adoption pay 

or Maternity Allowance so that you or your partner can get SPL.

You can start SPL while your partner is still on maternity or adoption leave as 
long as they have given binding notice to end it.  You can give binding notice 
and say when you plan to take your SPL at the same time.

Statutory Shared Parental Pay (ShPP)

ShPP is paid at the rate of £140.98 a week (wef 5.4.2017) or 90% of your 
average weekly earnings, whichever is lower.

 If you are the mother (or the person getting adoption pay), you must end 
maternity/adoption leave by returning to work or give the Council binding 
notice of the date when you plan to end any maternity or adoption pay. 

 If you get Maternity Allowance, you must give notice to the Jobcentre 
Plus.

 You can not restart SMP, SAP or MA once it has ended.
 You can start ShPP while your partner is still on SMP, SAP or MA as long 

as they’ve given binding notice to end it.
 You can give binding notice and say when you plan to take your ShPP at 

the same time.

5. Can I cancel the decision to end my maternity or adoption leave?

You may be able to change your decision to end maternity or adoption leave 
early if both:

 the planned end date hasn’t passed
 you haven’t already returned to work

One of the following must also apply:
 it’s discovered during the 8-week notice period that neither of you is 

eligible for SPL or ShPP 

Page 20

https://www.gov.uk/shared-parental-leave-and-pay/applying-for-leave-and-pay
https://www.gov.uk/shared-parental-leave-and-pay/applying-for-leave-and-pay


5

 the employee’s partner has died
 You tell the Council less than 6 weeks after the birth (and you gave notice 

before the birth)

6. How do I apply for Shared Parental Leave and Pay?

 To get Shared Parental Leave (SPL) or Shared Parental Pay (ShPP) you must:

 follow the procedure for starting SPL and ShPP 
 give the Council at least 8 weeks’ written notice of your leave dates

You can do both at the same time using forms at APPENDIX 1

You can change your mind later about how much SPL or ShPP you plan to take 
and when you want to take it. You must give notice of any changes at least 8 
weeks before the start of any leave.  You might not get SPL or ShPP if you don’t 
include all the required information. Your partner must apply to their own 
employer if they also want SPL or ShPP.

7. What other information might I need to provide?

The Council can ask you for more information within 14 days of you applying for 
SPL or ShPP. They can ask for:

 a copy of the birth certificate
 a declaration of the place and date of birth (if the birth hasn’t been 

registered yet)
 the name and address of your partner’s employer or a declaration that 

your partner has no employer

If you’re adopting, your employer can ask for the:
 name and address of the adoption agency
 date you were matched with the child
 date the child will be start to live with you
 name and address of your partner’s employer or a declaration that your 

partner has no employer

You must give this information within 14 days of being asked for it.

8. How do I book leave?

You can book up to 3 separate blocks of Shared Parental Leave (SPL) instead of 
taking it all in one go, even if you aren’t sharing the leave with your partner.  If 
your partner is also eligible for SPL, you can take up to 3 blocks of leave each. 
You can take leave at different times or both at the same time.

You must tell the Council about your plans for leave when you apply for SPL. 
You can change these plans later but you must give your employer at least 8 
weeks’ notice before you want to begin a block of leave.  If your employer 
agrees, you can split blocks into shorter periods of at least a week.

Page 21

https://www.gov.uk/shared-parental-leave-and-pay/when-you-can-start
https://www.gov.uk/shared-parental-leave-and-pay/apply-for-shared-parental-leave


6

9. What are Shared Parental Leave in touch (SPLIT) days?

You and your partner can each work up to 20 days while you’re taking SPL 
without bringing it to an end. These are called ‘Shared Parental Leave in touch’ 
(or SPLIT) days.  These days are in addition to the 10 ‘keeping in touch’ (or KIT) 
days available to those on maternity or adoption leave.  KIT and SPLIT days are 
optional - both you and your employer must agree to them.

10. Should the Council and I maintain contact during Shared Parental 
Leave?

Yes, there should be ‘reasonable contact’ between yourself and the Council 
whilst you are on SPL, which can be agreed in advance.  The organisation 
reserves the right to maintain reasonable contact during SPL which may include 
discussing the employee’s plans to return to work and training requirements, 
possible promotion opportunities or simply to update on any key developments 
during their absence. All job opportunities can also be accessed on 
www.wmjobs.co.uk or our own website, www.worcester.gov.uk

11. What is my contractual status whilst on SPL, and on return to 
work?

Your employment terms and conditions are protected during Shared Parental 
Leave and you are entitled to any pay rises and improvements in terms and 
conditions awarded during the leave. You should not enter into any other form 
of contractual employment (paid or otherwise) during this time. You may 
however, undertake training courses. 

You will have been formally advised in writing by the Council of the end date of 
any period of SPL. You are expected to return on the next working day after this 
date. If you are unable to attend work due to sickness or injury, the Council’s 
normal arrangements for sickness absence will apply. 

If you return to work after taking 26 weeks or less of maternity / paternity / 
adoption leave / SPL in aggregate, you are entitled to return to the same job on 
the same terms and conditions as if they had not been absent, unless a 
redundancy situation has arisen. 

If your maternity / paternity / adoption leave / SPL amounts to 26 weeks or 
more in aggregate, you are entitled to return to the same job you held before 
commencing the last period of leave or, if this is not reasonably practicable, to 
another job which is both suitable and appropriate and on terms and conditions 
no less favourable.

If you decide not to return to work after your shared parental leave you must 
give the Council the notice of termination required by your contract of 
employment.

12. What about my pension? 

Page 22

https://www.gov.uk/employee-rights-when-on-leave
http://www.wmjobs.co.uk/


7

Whilst on Shared Parental Leave, the amount of LGPS pension you build up will 
not be affected.  This means that if you have a period of reduced contractual 
pay during SPL, your pension is still worked out using an average of your usual 
pensionable pay (before the reduction in pay took place). You will only pay your 
contributions on any pay that you receive.  

If you decide to take a period of unpaid SPL, you will not build up pension 
benefits. You can elect to cover the period of pension “lost” by taking out an 
Additional Pension Contribution (APC) contract.  Where an APC contract is taken 
out to cover the pension “lost” during a period of unpaid SPL, the cost is shared 
1/3rd to the employee and 2/3rds to the employer, provided that you make an 
election to buy the “lost” pension within 30 days of returning to work. For more 
information please speak to People Services

13. What about the subscriptions I pay through my salary? 

Salary deductions, including the Orchard Healthcare Plan (WHCA), Childcare 
Vouchers, Trade Union subscriptions and the Cycle to Work Scheme, will 
continue as long as you are receiving pay and it is enough to cover the 
deductions. After this time you should make arrangements directly with the 
appropriate organisations to ensure correct payment.

14. What annual leave am I entitled to?

Annual leave will continue to accrue during all of your periods of Shared Parental 
Leave. You will also be granted the appropriate number of days off in lieu of any 
public / bank holidays that occur during your SPL. You are advised to discuss 
arrangements for taking this accrued leave with your manager before you return 
to work.

15. What are Childcare Vouchers?

The Council operates a Childcare Vouchers scheme whereby you (and your 
partner if also employed by Worcester City Council) can exchange part of your 
gross salary/wages for Childcare Vouchers. Details are on the Intranet or 
contact People Services

16. Am I eligible for Tax Credits?

If you return to work you may be eligible for Working Tax Credits. To review, 
please visit www.gov.uk

17. What if I am unhappy with a decision on Shared Parental Leave?

If you are dissatisfied with any decision made in respect of SPL rights, you 
should firstly highlight it to your manager, or speak to People Services.  You are 

Page 23

http://www.gov.uk/


8

also able to raise your concern via the Council’s formal grievance procedure, 
which is found on the Intranet.  

18. Our other Family Friendly Procedures.

Parental Leave       
Flexible Working
Adoption Leave and Pay
Paternity Leave and Pay
Maternity Leave        
Maternity and Adoption Support Leave

19. Shared Parental Leave & Pay  - Forms

At APPENDIX 1 you will find the forms needed by a mother and the person she 
will share Shared Parental Leave with (the partner ) to confirm eligibility and 
entitlement with Worcester City Council. The forms can also be used to confirm 
eligibility and entitlement to Shared Parental Pay (ShPP).

What forms need to be completed?
Both parents want to 
take SPL

Just the mother wants 
to take SPL

Just the partner 
wants to take SPL

Form 1 YES YES YES 
Form 2 YES YES NO
Form 3 NO NO YES
Form 4 YES NO YES

Page 24



9

20. The Shared Parental Leave process at a glance

Step 1:

Becoming aware of 
a pregnancy or 

match

You

Is SPL suitable?

Considering what leave 
arrangements work best?

The Council

Discussing intentions and 
other leave options

Step 2

Step 2:

Choosing SPL and
notification of
entitlement

You

Notifying the Council of 
eligibility

The Council

Discussing early intentions

Making early preparations 
and planning 

Step 3:

Notification of a 
leave booking

You

Notifying the Council of a 
leave booking

The Council

Considering the impact of a 
leave booking

Discussing a leave booking

:

Step 4:

OUTCOME

You

Leave begins or the request 
is withdrawn

The Council

Confirm and communicate
outcome

Page 25



10

21. APPENDIX 1

Form 1: Curtailment of Maternity Leave and Pay (for mother’s employer)

SECTION A: General (must be completed)
Please accept this as my notice to curtail my maternity leave and/or SMP. This form is 
accompanied by notification that either I intend to take SPL and/or ShPP or that my 
partner intends to take SPL and/or ShPP. I understand that my maternity leave will end 
on the date given in Section B and that my SMP will end on the date given in Section C. 
I understand that I can only reinstate my maternity leave if I revoke this notice before 
the curtailment date given in Section B.  I understand that if I am eligible for myself or 
my partner to opt into SPL and ShPP I can only reinstate my SMP if I revoke this notice 
before the end date given in Section C.
Mother’s surname 

Mother’s first name(s)

Child’s expected date of birth

Actual date of child’s birth (if born)

SECTION B: Curtailing maternity leave (must be completed)
Date statutory maternity leave started/is intended to start

Date statutory maternity leave will come to an end

Total number of weeks of statutory maternity leave that will 
have been taken at the date that statutory maternity leave 
ends
SECTION C: Curtailing maternity pay (only complete if claiming ShPP)
Date SMP started/is intended to start

Date SMP will come to an end

Total number of weeks of SMP that will have been paid at 
the date that SMP ends
SECTION D: Signature (must be completed)
Signature of mother

Date signed

Page 26



11

Form 2: Notification that Mother is intending to take SPL (for Mother’s 
Employer)

SECTION A: General (must be completed)
Please accept this as notification that I (the mother) am entitled to and intend to take 
SPL (and ShPP if section C is completed). 
Mother’s Surname

Mother’s First name(s)

Partner’s surname

Partner’s first name(s)

Partner’s Address

Partner’s National Insurance number (State ‘none’ if no 
number is held)
Child’s expected date of birth

Actual date of child’s birth (if child not yet born I will 
provide this information as soon as reasonably practicable 
following birth and before I take any SPL)
SECTION B: Maternity entitlement details (all answers that apply must be 
completed)
Date mother started (or intends to start) statutory 
maternity leave
Date mother’s statutory maternity leave ended (or will end)
Total number of weeks of statutory maternity leave that will 
have been taken at the date that statutory maternity leave 
ends
Date mother started (or intends to start) SMP or MA

Date mother’s SMP or MA ended (or will end)

Total number of weeks SMP or MA has been paid or will 
have been paid at date of curtailment
Total number of weeks by which SMP or MA will be reduced 
(i.e. 39 weeks minus total number of weeks SMP or MA has 
been paid or will have been paid at date of curtailment)
SECTION C: Amount of SPL available (must be completed)
Total number of weeks of SPL created (52 weeks less total 
number of maternity weeks taken and any SPL from a 
previous notice and revocation)
Total number of weeks of SPL I (the mother) intend to take
Total number of weeks of SPL my partner intends to take
SECTION D: Indication of Mother’s leave intentions (must be completed but is 
not binding)

I (the mother) currently expect to take SPL as follows:

Note: It will usually be helpful to answer this in a “From… To…” format

Page 27



12

SECTION E: Amount of ShPP available (only complete if claiming ShPP)
Total number of weeks of ShPP created (39 weeks less total 
number of SMP taken and any ShPP paid from a previous 
notice and revocation)
Total number of weeks of ShPP I (the mother) intend to 
take:
Total number of weeks of ShPP my partner intends to take:  
I (the mother) currently expect to take ShPP as follows:

Note: It will usually be helpful to answer this in a “From… To…” format
SECTION F: Mother's declaration (must be completed)
The following points apply in all circumstances where a mother is entitled to 
maternity leave:
 I am giving notice that I am entitled to and intend to take SPL
 I have, or will have, been continuously employed for 26 weeks at the end of the 15th 

week before the week in which the child is due
 I will remain employed with this employer until any period of SPL that I intend to 

take
 I had (or will have) the main responsibility for the care of the child at the time of the 

child’s birth (along with my partner who has made the declaration below) 
 I am entitled to maternity leave, my maternity leave period is reduced and the 

remaining weeks  are now available as SPL
 I will inform my employer immediately if I am no longer caring  for my child 
 I will give my employer a copy of my child’s birth certificate or a declaration of the 

date and place of the birth where no certificate is available if my employer asks for 
this within 14 days of the date of this notice

 I will give my employer the name and address of my partner’s employer or a 
declaration that they do not have an employer if my employer asks for this within 14 
days of the date of this notice

 I (or my partner) have given a period of SPL notice
 The information provided in this declaration is accurate and meets the notification 

requirements for SPL
The following points only apply if Section E has been completed:
 I am giving notice that I am entitled to and intend to take ShPP
 I have been (or will be) paid at least the Lower Earnings Limit in the 8 weeks leading 

up to the end of the 15th week before the expected week of childbirth
 I am entitled to SMP in respect of the birth of our child, my maternity pay period is 

reduced and the period that remains is available as ShPP
 I will be absent from work in each week in which I will be paid ShPP and I will be on 

SPL in those weeks (if entitled to SPL)
 I intend to care for my child in the weeks I receive ShPP
 I will remain employed with this employer until before the start of ShPP
 I will immediately inform the person who will be paying ShPP if I revoke the 

curtailment of my SMP or MA
 The information provided in this declaration is accurate
Signature of mother

Date mother signed

Page 28



13

SECTION G: Partner’s declaration (must be completed)
 I am the father of the child, or at the date of the birth I was/will be the mother’s 

spouse, the mother’s civil partner and/or the mother’s partner living with her and the 
child in an enduring relationship

 I had (or will have) the main responsibility for the care of our child at the time of the 
birth (along with the child’s mother)

 I have been (or will have been) employed or self-employed in England, Scotland or 
Wales in 26 weeks of the 66 weeks before the expected week of birth

 I have (or will have) earned in total at least £390 in 13 weeks of the 66 weeks 
before the expected week of childbirth 

 I consent to the amount of SPL which the mother intends to take, as set out in 
Section D above.

 I consent to the mother’s employer processing the information I have provided
 I consent to the amount of ShPP which the mother intends to take, as set out in 

Section E above.
 The information provided in this declaration is accurate
Signature of partner

Date partner signed

Page 29



14

Form 3: Notice confirming that Partner is taking SPL but mother is not (for 
Mother’s Employer)

SECTION A: General (must be completed)
Please accept this as notification that I (the mother) do not intend to take SPL (or ShPP 
where relevant) but that my partner will be.

Mother’s surname

Mother’s first name(s)

SECTION B: Confirmation
 I am either not entitled to SPL (or ShPP where relevant), or I do not intend to take 

SPL (or claim ShPP where relevant)
 I declare that my partner has given a notice to their employer to take SPL and/or 

ShPP.
 I consent to my partner’s intended claim for SPL and/or ShPP.
SECTION C: Signature (must be completed)
Signature of mother

Date signed

Page 30



15

Form 4: Notification that Partner is intending to take SPL (for Partner’s 
Employer)

SECTION A: General (must be completed)
Please accept this as notification that I (the mother’s partner) am entitled to and intend 
to take SPL (and ShPP if section C is completed). 
Partner’s Surname

Partner’s First name(s)

Mother’s surname

Mother’s first name(s)

Mother’s Address

Mother’s National Insurance number (State ‘none’ if no 
number is held)
Child’s expected date of birth

Actual date of child’s birth (if child not yet born I will 
provide this information as soon as reasonably practicable 
following birth and before I take any SPL)
SECTION B: Maternity entitlement details (all answers that apply must be 
completed)
Date mother started (or intends to start) maternity leave (if 
applicable)
Date mother’s maternity leave ended (or will end) (if 
applicable)
Total number of weeks of maternity leave taken (or that will 
be taken) when maternity leave ends
Date mother started (or intends to start) SMP or MA (if 
applicable)
Date mother’s SMP or MA ended (or will end) (if applicable)
Total number of weeks SMP or MA has been paid or will 
have been paid at date of curtailment
Total number of weeks by which SMP or MA will be reduced 
(i.e. 39 weeks minus total number of weeks SMP or MA has 
been paid or will have been paid at date of curtailment)
SECTION C: Amount of SPL available (must be completed)
The total number of weeks of SPL created depends on the mothers leave and pay 
entitlements:
 If the mother was/is entitled to maternity leave and SMP/MA, the total created will 

be 52 weeks less any weeks maternity leave taken
 If the mother was/is entitled to maternity leave but not to SMP or MA, the total 

created will be 52 weeks less any weeks maternity leave taken
 If the mother was/is not entitled to maternity leave but was entitled to SMP/MA, the 

total created will be 52 weeks less any weeks of SMP/MA that was paid
 If the mother previously revoked her curtailment notice any SPL that was taken by 

the partner must be deducted
Total number of weeks of SPL created (50 max)

Total number of weeks of SPL I (the partner) intend to take

Total number of weeks of SPL the mother intends to take (if 
applicable)

Page 31



16

SECTION D: Indication of Partner’s leave intentions (must be completed but is 
not binding)
I (the partner) currently expect to take SPL as follows:

Note: It will usually be helpful to answer this in a “From… To…” format
SECTION E: Amount of ShPP available (only complete if claiming ShPP)
Total number of weeks of ShPP created (39 weeks less total 
number of SMP/MA taken and any ShPP paid from a 
previous notice and revocation)
Total number of weeks of ShPP I (the partner) intend to 
take:
Total number of weeks of ShPP mother intends to take:
I (the partner) currently expect to take ShPP as follows:

Note: It will usually be helpful to answer this in a “From… To…” format
SECTION F: Partner’s declaration (must be completed)
The following points apply in all circumstances:
 I am giving notice that I am entitled to and intend to take SPL
 I am the father of the child, or at the time of the birth I was/will be the mother’s 

spouse, the mother’s civil partner and/or the mother’s partner living with her and the 
child in an enduring relationship

 I have been (or will be) continuously employed for 26 weeks at the end of the 15th 
week before the week in which the child is due

 I will remain employed with this employer during any period of SPL 
 I had (or will have) the main responsibility for the care of our child at the time of the 

child’s birth (along with the child’s mother who has made the declaration below) 
 I will give my employer a copy of my child’s birth certificate or a declaration of the 

date and place of the birth where no certificate is available if my employer asks for 
this within 14 days of the date of this notice

 I will give my employer the name and address of the mother’s employer or a 
declaration that she does not have an employer if my employer asks for this within 
14 days of the date of this notice

 I will inform my employer immediately if I am no longer caring for our child or if my 
partner revokes her notice to curtail her maternity leave or SMP/maternity allowance 
period 

 I (or my partner) have given a period of SPL notice
 The information provided in this declaration is accurate and meets the notification 

requirements for SPL

Page 32



17

The following points only apply if Section E has been completed:
 I am giving notice that I am entitled to and intend to take ShPP
 I have been (or will be) paid at least the Lower Earnings Limit in the 8 weeks leading 

up to the end of the 15th week before the expected week of childbirth
 I intend to care for my child in the weeks I receive ShPP
 I will be absent from work in each week in which I will be paid ShPP and I will be on 

SPL in those weeks  (if entitled to SPL)
 I will remain employed with this employer until before the date of my first period of 

ShPP
 The information provided in this declaration is correct

Signature of partner

Date partner signed

SECTION G: Mother’s declaration (must be completed)
The following points apply in all circumstances:
 I had (or will have) the main responsibility for the care of the child at the time of the 

birth (along with my partner who has made the declaration above)
 I am entitled to maternity leave and/or SMP or MA in respect of the child and I have 

curtailed (or will curtail) my entitlement to maternity leave (or I have returned to 
work) and/or my entitlement to SMP or MA.

 I have, or will have, been employed or self-employed in England, Scotland or Wales 
in 26 weeks of the 66 weeks before the expected week of childbirth

 I have (or will have) earned in total at least £390 in 13 weeks of the 66 weeks 
before the expected week of birth

 I will immediately inform my partner if I revoke my notice to curtail my maternity 
leave or, if I am not entitled to maternity leave, my SMP or MA entitlement

 I consent to my partner’s intended SPL as set out in Section D above 
 I consent to my partner’s employer processing the information I have provided
 The information provided in this declaration is accurate and meets the notification 

requirements for SPL
The following points only apply if Section E has been completed:
 I am entitled to SMP or MA, and I have reduced (or will reduce) the SMP or MA 

period and the remainder will be available as ShPP
 I consent to my partner’s intended ShPP as set out in Section E above
 I will immediately inform my partner if I revoke the reduction of my SMP or MA 
 I consent to the person who will pay ShPP to my partner or the child’s father 

processing the information I have provided
 The information provided in this declaration is correct
Signature of mother

Date mother signed

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Worcester City Council
MATERNITY LEAVE & PAY PROCEDURE

Title Maternity Leave & Pay Procedure

Status  Draft

Document 
Version

V3

Author Catherine Simcox

Sponsor Mark Edwards

Owner People Services

Approved by

Approved date

Review
frequency

Next Review:

Version History

Version Date Description

0.1 4.6.15

0.2 24.05.16

0.3 24.03.17

Page 35 Agenda Item 5
Appendix 3



2

Contents

1. WHAT AM I ENTITLED TO? ...........................................................................3

2. WHAT IS A RISK ASSESSMENT?....................................................................3

3. WHAT ABOUT ANTENATAL APPOINTMENTS ? ..................................................3

4. WHAT ELSE SHOULD I KNOW?......................................................................4

5. HOW DO I QUALIFY FOR MATERNITY LEAVE?..................................................4

6. HOW DO I NOTIFY THE COUNCIL OF MY PREGNANCY? .....................................4

7. WHAT ARE THE TYPES OF MATERNITY PAY?....................................................4

8. WHAT IF I DO NOT QUALIFY FOR ANY TYPE OF MATERNITY PAY? ......................5

9. HOW MUCH WILL I BE PAID?........................................................................6

10. WHAT IS SHARED PARENTAL LEAVE AND PAY? ...............................................6

11. SHOULD THE COUNCIL AND I MAINTAIN CONTACT DURING MATERNITY LEAVE?.6

12. WHAT IS MY CONTRACTUAL STATUS WHILST ON MATERNITY LEAVE? ...............6

13. WHAT ABOUT MY PENSION?.........................................................................7

14. WHAT ABOUT THE SUBSCRIPTIONS I PAY THROUGH MY SALARY?.....................7

15. WHAT ARE KEEP IN TOUCH DAYS (KIT)? ........................................................7

16. WHAT ANNUAL LEAVE AM I ENTITLED TO? .....................................................8

17. WHEN DO I RETURN TO WORK FOLLOWING MATERNITY LEAVE? .......................8

18. SOMETIMES DIFFICULT SITUATIONS ARISE… .................................................8

19. CAN I REQUEST FLEXIBLE WORKING? ...........................................................9

20. WHAT ARE CHILDCARE VOUCHERS? ..............................................................9

21. AM I ELIGIBLE FOR TAX CREDITS? ................................................................9

22. WHAT IF I AM UNHAPPY WITH A DECISION ON MATERNITY? ............................9

23. OUR OTHER FAMILY FRIENDLY PROCEDURES. ................................................9

Commonly Used Abbreviations

Additional Maternity Leave AML
Expected week of childbirth/confinement EWC
Keep In Touch Days KIT
Maternity Allowance MA
Maternity Certificate MATB1
Ordinary Maternity Leave OML
Occupational Maternity Pay OMP
Shared Parental Leave Keep in Touch Days SPLIT
Statutory Maternity Pay SMP

Page 36



3

Maternity Leave and Pay Procedure

1. What am I entitled to?

 You have the right, regardless of service, of up to 52 weeks Maternity Leave, 
made up of 26 weeks Ordinary Maternity Leave (OML) and 26 weeks 
Additional Maternity Leave (AML).

 You may be entitled to a maximum of 39 weeks Statutory Maternity Pay 
(SMP) or Maternity Allowance (MA).  

 You may also qualify for the Council’s Occupational Maternity Pay (OMP).
 You have the right to return to work in the same role, with the same terms 

and conditions during OML.  Additionally, a suitable alternative job could also 
be offered on return from AML (if your original job no longer exists)

 During Maternity Leave, you can agree to have up to 10 Keep In Touch (KIT) 
days.

 You have the right to a risk assessment 
 You have the right to paid reasonable time off for antenatal care.
 You have the right to protection against unfavourable treatment during 

pregnancy and maternity.
 You have the right to pay rises and accrued holidays
 You may also be eligible to get Shared Parental Leave and Pay

2. What is a Risk Assessment?

If you are pregnant or breastfeeding, we have a legal obligation to ensure you have a 
healthy and safe working environment.

Pregnancy: When you notify us that you are pregnant, we will complete a risk 
assessment. There may be a need to alter your working conditions, or to adjust 
working hours, or to offer you suitable alternative work.

New mothers: When at work and you need to express breast milk, we will arrange for 
suitable private facilities to be made available for you. It would be helpful if you could 
give us adequate notice to organise this.  For further advice on risk assessments, 
please contact  Health & Safety or  People Services.

3. What about antenatal appointments ?

Regardless of length of service, you are entitled to paid reasonable time off for 
antenatal care made on the advice of a registered GP, registered health visitor or 
registered midwife.  

You will be expected to give reasonable notice and may need to provide evidence of 
antenatal appointments, eg. an appointment card or a certificate signed by your GP.  
Please try to make their appointments at the beginning or end of the working day to 
minimise disruption in your team.

Page 37

https://www.gov.uk/shared-parental-leave-and-pay


4

4. What else should I know?

 You must take at least 2 weeks Maternity Leave directly after the birth.
 Usually, the earliest time you can start Maternity Leave is at the beginning of 

the 11th week before your expected week of childbirth/confinement (EWC).
 Leave will also start the day after the birth if the baby is early or automatically 

if you’re off work for a pregnancy-related illness in the 4 weeks before the week 
(Sunday to Saturday) that your baby is due.

5. How do I qualify for Maternity Leave?

You must notify the Council of your pregnancy by the end of the 15th week before the 
EWC. You must be in continuous employment up to the beginning of the 11th week 
before the EWC.  This is the earliest time you can start your maternity leave (unless 
the baby is premature in which case it will start earlier).  

6. How do I notify the Council of my pregnancy?

You must notify us in writing, at least 28 days before you wish to start your Maternity 
Leave.  Tell us:

 That you are pregnant and your expected week of childbirth. (EWC)
 The date you wish your Maternity Leave to start.
 If you wish to receive OMP, you should also indicate that you intend to return to 

work and state how you would like your OMP to be paid. See What Maternity 
Pay am I entitled to?

 You must obtain a Maternity Certificate (MATB1) from a registered GP or 
midwife and forward the original document to People Services within 21 days of 
your SMP start date.  Photocopies are not acceptable.

The Council will write to you within 28 days of receiving your request to start 
Maternity Leave to let you know your expected date of return. 

You must give us 8 weeks notice if you wish to change your return date.  You can 
also change the start date for your Maternity Leave provided that you give us 28 
days notice.

7. What are the types of Maternity Pay?

Occupational Maternity Pay 

To qualify for OMP:

 You must have completed a minimum of one year’s continuous service with the 
Council by the 11th week before the expected week of childbirth. 

 You must indicate in writing before you start your Maternity Leave that you 
intend to return to work following your Maternity Leave.

Page 38



5

 You are required to return to work for a minimum of 12 weeks at the end of your 
Maternity Leave period to qualify for OMP.  If you do not return for the required 
time then any OMP paid will be claimed back.

 If you return on reduced hours, you must return for a period equivalent to 12 
weeks at the hours worked before Maternity Leave commenced.  For example, 
someone who worked 37 hours per week, returning at 18.5 hours, you would be 
required to return for at least 6 months. If you are unsure of your intention to 
return, you can elect to have your OMP deferred and paid usually in a lump sum 
at a later date. Please speak with People Services. 

 Payments are based on your current salary and will be adjusted to reflect any 
pay increases during the Maternity Leave period.  

Statutory Maternity Pay 

SMP is payable for up to 39 weeks during your Maternity Pay period. 

To qualify for SMP: 

 You will have been employed continuously for at least 26 weeks ending with the 
15th week before the expected week of childbirth. 

 You will have average weekly earnings at least equal to the lower earnings limit 
for National Insurance contributions. The Council will inform you if your average 
weekly earnings are below the lower earnings limit. 

 You will be employed by the Council during the period of SMP and have 
complied with our notice requirements.

 You will still be pregnant eleven weeks before the start of the EWC or have 
already given birth.

 You are not required to pay back any SMP received, even if you do not return to 
work.  

 If your employment ends for any reason during or after the 15th week before 
the EWC, you retain your full entitlement to SMP.

 If you do not qualify for SMP, you may be entitled to Maternity Allowance.

Maternity Allowance 

MA is paid for up to 39 weeks. To qualify, you must have been employed or self-
employed for 26 weeks out of the 66 weeks before the expected week of childbirth.  
Maternity Allowance is paid every 2 or 4 weeks. 

People Services can provide further advice regarding how Maternity Allowance should 
be claimed, or visit www.gov.uk
 

8. What if I do not qualify for any type of Maternity Pay?

If you are not entitled to OMP, SMP or MA, you will still be entitled to take up to 52 
weeks unpaid maternity leave.

Page 39

http://www.gov.uk/


6

9. How much will I be paid?

Maternity 
Leave period

Occupational Maternity Pay 
(OMP)

Statutory Maternity Pay 
(SMP)

Weeks 
1 - 6

6 weeks of pay in addition to SMP at 
standard rate.

SMP is paid at 90% of 
average weekly earnings 
(before Tax). 

Maternity 
Leave period

Occupational Maternity Pay 
(OMP)

Statutory Maternity Pay 
(SMP)

Weeks 7-39 6 weeks of pay in addition to SMP at 
standard rate.

OMP can be spread over a mutually 
agreed distribution period (providing 
the total does not exceed normal 
pay).
e.g. 12 weeks at half pay from 
weeks 7 – 18

You could also opt to be paid this 
amount in full when you return to 
work after Maternity Leave period. 
However the combination of OMP 
and SMP cannot exceed full pay.

£140.98 per week  (as at 
1.4.17) or 90% of your 
average weekly earnings 
(whichever is lower).

10. What is Shared Parental Leave and Pay?

If you eligible, Shared Parental Leave enables both you and your partner to share the 
care of your child during the first year of birth or adoption. You or your partner would 
end maternity / adoption leave and pay early, then take the rest of the 52 weeks as 
Shared Parental Leave and pay.  People Services can provide further advice on this 
procedure.

11. Should the Council and I maintain contact during Maternity Leave?

Yes, there should be ‘reasonable contact’ between yourself and the Council whilst you 
are on Maternity Leave, which can be agreed in advance.  We will aim to keep you 
informed of vacancies, training opportunities and any important workforce 
developments as they occur. All job opportunities can also be accessed on 
www.wmjobs.co.uk or our own website, www.worcester.gov.uk

12. What is my contractual status whilst on Maternity Leave?
Your employment terms and conditions are protected during Maternity Leave and you 
are entitled to any pay rises and improvements in terms and conditions awarded 

Page 40

http://www.wmjobs.co.uk/


7

during the leave. You should not enter into any other form of contractual employment 
(paid or otherwise) during this time. You may however, undertake training courses. 

13. What about my pension? 

Whilst on Maternity Leave, the amount of LGPS pension you build up will not be 
affected.  This means that if you have a period of reduced contractual pay during 
Maternity Leave, your pension is still worked out using an average of your usual 
pensionable pay (before the reduction in pay took place). You will only pay your 
contributions on any pay that you receive.  

If you decide to take a period of unpaid Maternity Leave (usually from week 40 to 
week 52), you will not build up pension benefits. You can elect to cover the period of 
pension “lost” by taking out a Additional Pension Contribution (APC) contract.

Where an APC contract is taken out to cover the pension “lost” during a period of 
unpaid Maternity Leave, the cost is shared 1/3rd to the employee and 2/3rds to the 
employer, provided that you make an election to buy the “lost” pension within 30 
days of returning to work. For more information please speak to People Services.

14. What about the subscriptions I pay through my salary? 

Salary deductions, including the Orchard Healthcare Plan (WHCA), Trade Union 
subscriptions, Childcare vouchers and the Cycle to Work Scheme, will continue as long 
as you are receiving pay and it is enough to cover the deductions. After this time you 
should make arrangements directly with the appropriate organisations to ensure 
correct payment.

15. What are Keep In Touch days (KIT)?

Whilst you are on Maternity Leave you are able to work up to 10 days without 
bringing your Maternity Leave to an end.  These days are known as KIT days.

 Working for only part of a day will count as one whole KIT day.  
 Any work done during this period must be agreed with the Council and you will 

be paid full pay for the exact time worked. 
 You are not obliged to take any KIT days and the Council is not required to 

allow them.
 You are not able to take KIT days during the first two weeks following a birth.
 During these 10 days, which may or may not be taken as a block, you will not 

lose any OMP, SMP or MA. 
 KIT days may include training /team away days/ team meetings/Council 

briefings. 
 Once you have used your 10 KIT days, if you do any further work you will lose 

OMP, SMP or MA for each week in which you do that work.
 If you undertake KIT days, this does not mean that your Maternity Leave is 

extended. It will remain at 52 weeks.  

Page 41



8

 Shared Parental Leave in touch (SPLIT) days are for parents taking Shared 
Parental Leave.  Each parent is entitled to 20 SPLIT days. See the Shared 
Parental Leave Procedure.

The KIT and  SPLIT Application Forms are on the Intranet or contact People Services.

16. What annual leave am I entitled to?

Annual leave will continue to accrue during all of your Maternity Leave. You will also 
be granted the appropriate number of days off in lieu of any public / bank holidays 
that occur during your Maternity Leave. You are advised to discuss arrangements for 
taking this accrued leave with your manager before you return to work.

17. When do I return to work following Maternity Leave?

It is assumed that you will return to work after your Maternity Leave.  You must take 
at least 2 weeks Maternity Leave after a birth. 

 If you return to work at the end of your full 52 weeks of Maternity Leave you do 
not need to provide any notice. 

 If you wish to return early from your Maternity Leave you must give 8 weeks 
notice.

 If you decide not to return to work and you have received any Occupational 
Maternity Pay whilst you have been on Maternity Leave, you will normally be 
required to repay it (although you will not have to repay your SMP).

 If you are unable to return to work on the expected date because of sickness, 
this will still be classed as a return to work and you should follow the same 
notification and certification procedures as for any other sickness absence.

 Following OML you are entitled to return to the same job in which you were 
employed before, on the same terms and conditions.  If you take AML and it is 
not practical for you to return to your original post, then you will be offered 
another post appropriate for you in the circumstances.

 If during Maternity Leave, there is a Council restructure and your post then 
ceases to exist after consultation, you will be kept updated and the appropriate 
Council policies will apply.

18. Sometimes difficult situations arise…  

 Miscarriage, Stillbirth or Termination: If a miscarriage or termination occurs 
before 24 weeks of pregnancy then Maternity Leave and Pay does not apply.  If 
you are unfit to be at work, then normal sickness reporting procedures will 
apply.  If a miscarriage or termination happens after 24 weeks then Maternity 
Leave and Pay will apply. Entitlements to Paternity Leave, Maternity /Adoption 
Support Leave and Shared Parental Leave also apply.

 Premature Birth: A baby born prematurely (even if prior to 24 weeks) will mean 
that Maternity Leave and Pay entitlements will begin from the date of birth. If 
the baby subsequently does not survive, then Maternity Leave and Pay will still 
apply because a live birth did take place.

Page 42



9

 Multiple Births: Maternity Leave remains at 52 weeks regardless of the number 
of children resulting from a single pregnancy.

19. Can I request Flexible Working?

All employees have the statutory right to request Flexible Working after 26 weeks 
continuous employment with the Council.  For further information, please see our 
Flexible Working Procedure.

20. What are Childcare Vouchers?

The Council operates a Childcare Vouchers scheme whereby you (and your partner if 
also employed by Worcester City Council) can exchange part of your gross 
salary/wages for Childcare Vouchers. Details are on the Intranet or contact People 
Services

21. Am I eligible for Tax Credits?

If you return to work you may be eligible for Working Tax Credits. To review, please 
visit www.gov.uk

22. What if I am unhappy with a decision on Maternity?

You have the right to protection against unfavourable treatment during pregnancy 
and maternity.  If you are dissatisfied with any decision made in respect of Maternity 
rights, you should firstly highlight it to your manager, or speak to People Services.  
You are also able to raise your concern via the Council’s formal grievance procedure, 
which is found on the Intranet.  

23. Our other Family Friendly Procedures.
Parental Leave       Flexible Working
Adoption Leave and Pay Paternity Leave and Pay
Shared Parental Leave        Maternity and Adoption Support Leave

Page 43

http://www.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



Worcester City Council
PATERNITY LEAVE & PAY PROCEDURE

Title Paternity Leave and Pay Procedure

Status Draft

Document 
Version

V3

Author Catherine Simcox

Sponsor Mark Edwards

Owner People Services

Approved by

Approved date

Review 
frequen
cy

Next Review:

Version History

Version Date Description

0.1 14.12.15

0.2 24.05.16

0.3 24.03.17

Page 45 Agenda Item 5
Appendix 4



2

Contents

1. Am I entitled to Paternity Leave and Pay?....................................3
2. What are my rights? .................................................................3
3. Am I eligible for Statutory Paternity or Statutory Adoption Pay? .....3
4. How do I give notice to take Paternity Leave? ..............................3
5. When can I take Paternity Leave?...............................................4
6. Sometimes difficulties may arise… ..............................................4
7. What if I terminate my employment?..........................................5
8. Can I take Parental Leave as well? .............................................5
9. What is Shared Parental Leave? .................................................5
10. What happens with my annual leave? .........................................5
11. Is my pension affected ? ...........................................................5
12. What if I am unhappy with a decision on Paternity? ......................6
13. Our other Family Friendly Procedures..........................................6
14. Appendix 1 APPLICATION FOR PATERNITY LEAVE AND PAY ............7

Page 46



3

Paternity Leave and Pay Procedure

1. Am I entitled to Paternity Leave and Pay?

Yes, if you have
 continuous employment with Worcester City Council for at least 26 

weeks by the Qualifying Week: Childbirth This is the end of the 15th 
week before the expected week of childbirth.  Adoption    This is the 
week in which the adopter is notified of being matched with a child 
for the purposes of adoption

 You have or expect to have responsibility for the child's upbringing.
 You are the biological father of the child or the mother / adopter’s 

husband or partner (including same sex relationships), the child’s 
adopter or the intended parent (if you’re having a baby through a 
surrogacy arrangement)

 You give the correct notification to take Paternity Leave.

You may also be eligible for our Maternity / Adoption Support Leave 
& Pay, to use alongside or instead of Paternity Leave and Pay.  

2. What are my rights?

 Up to 2 weeks Paternity Leave and Pay (pro rata for part time staff) 
 Right to pay increases during leave, accrued annual leave and to 

return to work in the same role.
 Right to reasonable unpaid time off to accompany your partner (or 

a surrogate mother) to 2 antenatal appointments.
 Right to reasonable unpaid time off to attend 2 adoption 

appointments after you have been matched with a child.

3. Am I eligible for Statutory Paternity or Statutory Adoption Pay?

Yes, if your average weekly earnings in the eight weeks before the end of 
the Qualifying Week are not less than the lower earnings limit for the 
payment of national insurance contributions. If you are not entitled to SPP 
or SAP, you could apply for income support. Statutory Paternity / 
Adoption Pay (SSP/SAP) is currently at a rate of £139.58  per week, or 
90% of your average weekly earnings, whichever is lower. 

4. How do I give notice to take Paternity Leave?

 Childbirth: you must give notice of your intention to take Paternity 
Leave by the end of the Qualifying Week.

 UK Adoption: you must give notice of your intention to take 
Paternity Leave no more than seven days after you are notified of 
being matched with the child.

 Overseas adoption: you must give at least 28 days’ notice of your 
intention to take Paternity Leave.  The start date can be the date on 
which your adopted child arrives in the UK but cannot be later than 
28 days after the child enters the UK.  

Page 47



4

In some cases it will not be possible for you to give the notice 
required, in which case you must give notice as soon as reasonably 
practicable.  

5. When can I take Paternity Leave? 

Childbirth:  Paternity Leave can not start before the birth. It must be 
taken within 56 days (8 weeks) of the birth.  

Adoption:   Paternity Leave can start on the date of placement;
 or an agreed number of days after the date of placement;
 or on the date the child arrives in the UK or an agreed number of 

days after this (overseas adoptions only);
 or the day the child’s born or the day after, if you are working that 

day (surrogate parents);
 it must be taken within 56 days (8 weeks) of the date of placement 

or the child’s arrival in the UK (overseas adoptions).

You must give the Council 28 days notice in writing if you want to change 
your start date, or as soon as is reasonably practicable. 

6. Sometimes difficulties may arise…

Premature births 

If you child is born prematurely, Paternity Leave will be taken at any point  
between the actual date of birth and 56 days (8 weeks) following the
expected week of childbirth. You would still qualify for Paternity Leave and 
SSP even if you have not been continuously employed by Worcester City 
Council for 26 weeks when the child is born, provided that this is before 
the Qualifying Week. You would have been continuously employed for 
such a period if this employment had continued until the Qualifying Week.

Miscarriage, stillbirths or loss

You will be entitled to Paternity Leave and SPP if a child was miscarried or 
stillborn after 24 weeks of pregnancy, or later died. If a miscarriage or 
stillbirth occurs before the end of the 24 weeks of pregnancy, you will not 
be entitled to Paternity Leave or SPP.

Disrupted placements (adoption)

If the child’s placement does not go ahead, you are not entitled to 
Paternity Leave or SPP. If the placement comes to an end or is otherwise 
disrupted after you have started Paternity Leave, you remain entitled to 
your full Paternity Leave and SPP. 

Multiple Births

Your entitlement does not change if there is a multiple birth – eg. you are
not entitled to double Paternity Leave and SPP for twins.

Page 48



5

7. What if I terminate my employment?

If your employment ends before the child is born or placed for 
adoption or enters the UK, you are not entitled to Paternity Leave or 
SPP. If your employment ends after the date of birth or placement or 
entry into the UK, you remain entitled to SPP. Should you, however, 
start working for another employer, you will lose your entitlement to 
SPP from that date. 

8. Can I take Parental Leave as well?

Yes, if you take a Parental Leave to follow on from Paternity Leave, you 
should contact the Council as soon as possible with the request and no 
later than 21 days before the proposed period of leave is due to begin.  
The Council will consider your request based on operational needs and 
staffing. 

If you take Paternity Leave with a period of Parental Leave of more than 
four weeks, and it is not reasonably practicable for you to return to the 
same job, you will be offered an alternative position on no less favourable 
terms and conditions.

9. What is Shared Parental Leave?

Shared Parental Leave will enable eligible mothers, fathers, partners and 
adopters to choose how to share time off work after their child is born or 
placed for adoption. This could mean that the mother or adopter shares 
some of the leave with her partner, perhaps returning to work for part of 
the time and then resuming leave at a later date.  Please refer to the 
Shared Parental Leave Procedure or speak with People Services.

10. What happens with my annual leave?

Annual Leave must be taken in the year that it is earned. If your holiday 
year is due to end, you are encouraged to take any outstanding leave 
which will be accrued during that holiday year before the commencement 
of your Paternity Leave.  Your line manager may also allow you to carry 
over 5 days of your accrued entitlement to the following holiday year.

11. Is my pension affected ?

Whilst on Paternity Leave, the amount of LGPS pension you build up will 
not be affected.  

This means that if you have a period of reduced contractual pay during 
Paternity Leave, your pension is still worked out using an average of your 
usual pensionable pay (before the reduction in pay took place). You will 
only pay your contributions on any pay that you receive.  The Council will 
notify you of the lost amount of Pensionable Pay for the period and you 
can elect to cover the period of pension "lost" by taking out an Additional 
Pension Contribution (APC) contract.  

Page 49



6

Where an APC contract is taken out to cover the pension "lost" during a 
period of unpaid Parental Leave, the cost is shared 1/3rd to the employee 
and 2/3rds to the employer, provided that the member makes an election 
to buy "lost" pension within 30 days or returning to work. 

12.   What if I am unhappy with a decision on Paternity?

If you are dissatisfied with any decision made in respect of Paternity 
rights, you should firstly highlight it to your manager, or speak to People 
Services.  You are also able to raise your concern via the Council’s 
formal grievance procedure, which is found on shareportal.  

13. Our other Family Friendly Procedures.

 Parental Leave
 Flexible Working
 Adoption Leave and Pay
 Maternity Leave and Pay
 Shared Parental Leave
 Maternity Support Leave and Adoption Support Leave.

Page 50



7

14. Appendix 1 APPLICATION FOR PATERNITY LEAVE AND PAY

Employee Name

Post Title

Service Area

Payroll Number

Line Manager Name

Dates for Pay and Leave  
 
Birth: What is the Due Date?

Birth: Would you like the Paternity 
Leave and SSP to start on the date 
the baby is born?  (Yes or No).  
Adoption: have you been given an 
adoption date?  (Yes or No)
I want to take the following 
paternity leave (one or two weeks)   

One Week Two Weeks

Anticipated dates of Paternity Leave From: To:

 Paternity Leave (Childbirth) may only be taken during the period 
starting from the birth and ending 8 weeks later. 

 Paternity Leave (Adoption UK) no more than seven days after you 
are notified of being matched with the child. (Adoption from 
Overseas) you must give at least 28 days notice

 You may only take 1 or 2 whole weeks but a week can begin on any 
day. You must take your leave in one go.

I am requesting Maternity/Adoption Support Leave. (yes / no)

Declaration
 I have had continuous employment with Worcester City Council for 

at least 26 weeks by the Qualifying Week, and will still be employed 
by the Council until birth or matched for adoption.

 I have or expect to have responsibility for the child's upbringing.
 I am the biological father of the child or the mother / adopter’s 

husband or partner, the child’s adopter or the intended parent 
(surrogacy).

 I will take time off work to support the mother or care for the child.

Signed:__________________________   Date: _______________

Application approved

Manager Signed: _______________________    Date: _______________ 

Name: _______________________________

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Worcester City Council
MATERNITY / ADOPTION SUPPORT 
LEAVE AND PAY PROCEDURE 

Maternity / Adoption Support Leave and 
Pay Procedure

Status Draft

Document 
Version

V4

Author Catherine Simcox

Sponsor Mark Edwards

Owner People Services

Approved by

Approved date

Review 
frequency

Next Review:

Version History

Version Date Description

0.1 3.6.15

0.2 24.05.16

0.3 24.03.17

0.4 27.03.17

Page 53 Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



2

Contents
1. Do I qualify for Maternity / Adoption Support Leave? ..............................2
2. What am I entitled to?........................................................................3
3. How do I give notice to take Maternity / Adoption Support Leave?............3
4. Can I request Maternity / Adoption support Leave as well as Paternity 

Leave and/or Shared Parental Leave?...................................................3
5. What if I am unhappy with a decision on Maternity / Adoption Support 

leave? ..............................................................................................3
6. Our other Family Friendly Policies. .......................................................3
7. APPENDIX 1......................................................................................4

Page 54



3

Maternity and Adoption Support Leave and Pay

1. Do I qualify for Maternity / Adoption Support Leave?

Yes if you are a Council employee, there is no length of service requirement.
 Maternity / Adoption Support Leave is paid leave, to enable you to be the 

“primary supporter” of a new mother or a new adoptive parent. 
 You have or will expect to have responsibility for the child's upbringing. 

You could be the father, mother’s husband, the partner (including same 
sex relationships), grandparent etc.  

 A new mother or adoptive parent can only nominate one person to be their 
primary provider of support.

2. What am I entitled to?

You are entitled to one week’s leave at full pay, to be taken at or about the time 
of the birth or placement for adoption. 

3. How do I give notice to take Maternity / Adoption Support Leave?

 You must complete an application form (Appendix 1).  This must be signed 
and completed both by you and the prospective mother/adoptive parent. 

 You must supply the original documents with the application form:  
Maternity = MATB1 Certificate signed by a GP or midwife.  
Adoption  = Adoption Matching Certificate.  
These documents will then be photocopied and returned to you.

 You should complete the application form as early as possible to keep your 
manager informed of your intentions.  However if you are unable to 
complete the exact dates of leave requested when making the application, 
please put approximate dates and note this on the form.

 Once the application has been approved it should be forwarded to People 
Services who will write to you to confirm approval.

4. Can I request Maternity / Adoption support Leave as well as Paternity 
Leave and/or Shared Parental Leave?

You would firstly need to qualify for Paternity and Shared Parental Leave – 
please refer to these procedures.

Paternity Leave You are unable to take both Maternity / Adoption Support Leave 
and 2 weeks Paternity Leave, but you can take 2 weeks off in total, the first or 
second week as Maternity / Adoption Support Leave.
Shared Parental Leave You may first choose to exhaust any Paternity Leave or  
Maternity / Adoption Support Leave entitlements (as you cannot take these once 
you have taken any Shared Parental Leave).

5. What if I am unhappy with a decision on Maternity / Adoption 
Support leave?

If you are dissatisfied with any decision made in respect of Maternity/Adoption 
support Leave, you should firstly highlight it to your manager, or speak to 

Page 55



4

People Services.  You are also able to raise your concern via the Council’s 
formal grievance procedure, which is found on the intranet  

6. Our other Family Friendly Policies.

 Parental Leave
 Flexible Working
 Paternity Leave and Pay
 Adoption Leave and Pay
 Maternity Leave and Pay
 Shared Parental Leave and Pay

Page 56



5

7. APPENDIX 1
APPLICATION FOR MATERNITY/ADOPTION SUPPORT LEAVE

Employee Name

Post Title

Service Area

Payroll Number

Line Manager Name

Relationship to Mother / Adopter

Declaration
I hereby declare that I have been nominated by the mother/adopter* named 
below as her/his* primary provider of support and apply for one weeks for 
maternity/adoption* support leave at or around the time of birth/adoption*. 

Signed: _____________________________  Date: _________________

Anticipated Dates of 
Leave

From: To:

Mother’s/Adopter’s* Details and Authority

Name

Address

Expected Date of Childbirth / 
Adoption Matching Date:
Maternity:  Please enclose original MATB1 Certificate. Adoption:   Please enclose the original 
Adoption Matching Certificate.  Original documents will be copied and returned to you.

Declaration
I hereby declare that the above named will be my primary provider of support at 
or around the time of childbirth/adoption*.

Signed: ________________________________          Date: _____________

Application approved

Manager Signed: _____________________________  Date: _____________

Name: ____________________________________ _

Form and Certificate to be forwarded to People Services. * delete as appropriate

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 6

Title Parental Leave Procedure

Status Draft

Document Version V0.3

Author Catherine Simcox

Sponsor Mark Edwards

Owner People Services

Approved by

Approved date

Review frequency Bi-annual

Next Review:

Version History

Version Date Description

0.1 14.12.15

0.2 24.05.16 Aligned headings

0.3 24.03.17

Worcester City Council
PARENTAL LEAVE PROCEDURE

Page 59 Agenda Item 5
Appendix 6



Page 2 of 6

Contents

1. When could I use Parental Leave? ...........................................................3
2. What am I entitled to? ...........................................................................3
3. Do I qualify for Parental Leave?...............................................................3
4. Is this paid leave? .................................................................................3
5. How do I give notice to take Parental Leave? ............................................3
6. Parental Leave following Paternity Leave ..................................................3
7. What if my Parental Leave is postponed?..................................................4
8. What happens with my Annual Leave? .....................................................4
9. Can I return to my role after Parental Leave?............................................4
10.   What if I decide not to return to work? ...................................................4
11.    Is my pension affected ? ......................................................................4
12.   What if I am unhappy with a decision on Parental Leave? ..........................5
13.   Our other Family Friendly Procedures .....................................................5
14.   Appendix 1 .........................................................................................6

Page 60



Page 3 of 6

Parental Leave Procedure

1. When could I use Parental Leave?

Parental Leave is unpaid leave and should only be taken to care for the welfare of 
a child, for example you may wish to take leave to:

 stay with your child while they are in hospital or while recovering at home
 spend quality time with your child

2. What am I entitled to?

 
 A maximum of 4 weeks leave may be taken per child in any one year 
 You are entitled to up to 18 weeks of unpaid Parental Leave entitlement per 

child up to their 18th birthday.  For part time employees, a week is their 
normal working week (or for irregular weeks, it can be calculated by 
calculating the total number of days they work in a year divided by 52.14).

 Parental Leave must be taken in minimum blocks of one week (with the 
exception of a child in receipt of disability living allowance whereby leave 
may be taken in blocks smaller than 1 week).

 Right to pay increases whilst on leave
 Right to accrued annual leave

3. Do I qualify for Parental Leave?

 Yes, if you have at least one year’s continuous employment with Worcester 
City Council.

 Yes, if you are the parent of a child (named on the Birth Certificate); or you 
are the adoptive parent of a child (named on the Adoption Certificate);or 
you have legal “parental responsibility” for a child.  

 You will need to provide evidence of the child’s date of birth or in the case 
of an adopted child, the date on which the placement began or is to begin 

 Where relevant, evidence that a child is entitled to Disability Living 
Allowance. 

4. Is this paid leave?

Parental Leave is unpaid leave.

5. How do I give notice to take Parental Leave?

 You must give us at least 21 days written notice to take Parental Leave. 
 You must discuss with your manager if the request is able to be 

accommodated (based on operational and/or resourcing need).
 Complete the Form attached at Appendix 1 and forward to your Line 

Manager and People Services.

6. Parental Leave following Paternity Leave 

If you take a Parental Leave to follow on from Paternity Leave, you should contact 
us no later than 21 days before the proposed period of leave is due to begin.  The 
Council could postpone a request for Parental Leave if leave would unduly disrupt 

Page 61



Page 4 of 6

operating levels. 

7. What if my Parental Leave is postponed?

We can refuse or postpone your application for Parental Leave (other than at the 
time a child is born or adopted) based on operational and/or resourcing needs.

Postponements along with the reason will be given in writing. Alternative dates 
may be offered. You will be entitled to reschedule any postponed Parental Leave, 
to begin no later than 6 months after the date on which the original requested 
leave should have begun. 

8. What happens with my Annual Leave?

Whilst on parental Leave you will continue to accrue annual leave. You are 
reminded that annual leave must be taken in the year that it is earned, before you 
consider Parental Leave. You may only carry over 5 days of your accrued annual 
leave entitlement to the following holiday year.

9. Can I return to my role after Parental Leave? 

Yes, you have the right to return to your role if you take 4 weeks or less of 
Parental Leave each year. 

However, if you take Parental Leave with a period of Paternity Leave (totalling 
more than four weeks), and it is not reasonably practicable for you to return to 
the same job, you will be offered an alternative position on no less favourable 
terms and conditions.

10. What if I decide not to return to work?

If you choose not to return to work following Parental Leave, you must provide 
the minimum notice of termination required by your contract of employment, in 
writing. 

11. Is my pension affected ?

If you take a period of Parental Leave, you will not build up pension benefits. The 
Council will notify you of the lost amount of Pensionable Pay for the period and 
you can elect to cover the period of pension "lost" by taking out an Additional 
Pension Contribution (APC) contract.  

Where an APC contract is taken out to cover the pension "lost" during a period of 
unpaid Parental Leave, the cost is shared 1/3rd to the employee and 2/3rds to the 
employer, provided that the member makes an election to buy "lost" pension 
within 30 days or returning to work. 

12. What if I am unhappy with a decision on Parental Leave?

If you are dissatisfied with any decision made in respect of Parental Leave 

Page 62



Page 5 of 6

rights, you should firstly highlight it to your manager, or speak to People 
Services.  You are also able to raise your concern via the Council’s formal 
grievance procedure, which is found onthe Intranet.  

13. Our other Family Friendly Procedures

 Paternity Leave and Pay
 Flexible Working
 Adoption Leave and Pay
 Maternity Leave and Pay
 Shared Parental Leave
 Maternity Support Leave and Adoption Support Leave.

Page 63



Page 6 of 6

14. Appendix 1 

APPLICATION FOR UNPAID PARENTAL LEAVE

You must give at least 21 days’ notice of when you propose to take Parental Leave.  

Employee Details:

Full Name _____________________________ Payroll No. ____________

Declaration     

I hereby declare that:

 I have continuous employment with Worcester City Council for at least 12 months.
 I am *the parent of a child (named on the Birth Certificate) /* the parent of a child 

(named on the Adoption Certificate) / *I have legal “parental responsibility” for a 
child under 18.  (Delete as appropriate)

 I can provide evidence of the child’s date of birth or in the case of an adopted child, 
the date on which the placement began or is to begin 

 Where relevant, I can provide evidence that the child is entitled to Disability Living 
Allowance.

Signed: _____________________________  Date: _________________

Dates for Parental Leave 

I would like to start my Parental Leave on:

I would like to return on:

Name of Child ________________________   Date of Birth ___________________

Adoption: Date when placement for adoption began or will begin _______________  

The child is / is not entitled to Disability Living Allowance (delete as applicable). 

Approval by Manager

Manager: Name: ________________________

Signature: _____________________________

Date: _______________

Please send the completed form to People Services and attach a copy of the child’s birth 
certificate/adoption certificate / court order/ Disability Living Allowance

Page 64



Worcester City Council
FLEXIBLE WORKING 
PROCEDURE 

Title Flexible Working Procedure 

Status Draft

Document Version V3

Author Catherine Simcox

Sponsor Mark Edwards

Owner Human Resources

Approved by

Approved date

Review frequency

Next Review:

Version History

Version Date Description

0.1 14.12.15

0.2 16.02.17

0.3 24.03.17

Page 65 Agenda Item 5
Appendix 7



2

Table of Contents
1. Entitlement........................................................................3
2. Application Process .............................................................3
Appendix 1.   Application Form for Flexible Working .....................4

Page 66



3

Flexible Working Procedure 

1. Am I entitled to Flexible Working?

You can make a request for flexible working if you satisfy the qualifying 
conditions:   

 You must have 26 weeks continuous service by the date that the 
application is made.

 You should not have submitted an application for flexible working 
within the previous 12 months 

2. How do I apply? 

Requests for changes to hours of work, place of work and / or time of work 
will be given serious consideration. Requests for flexible working must be 
made in writing on the Form attached at Appendix 1;

 you need to state the date the request is made, the change to 
working conditions you are seeking and the date you would like the 
change to take effect ; 

 state whether you have made a previous application for flexible 
working and the date of that application ; 

 what change to working conditions you are seeking and how you 
think this may or may not impact the Council;

 state if you are making your request in relation to the Equality Act 
2010, for example, as a reasonable adjustment for a disability. 

3. Handling requests to work flexibly

You are only able to make only one application a year.  If an application is 
accepted by the Council it will result in permanent changes to your terms and 
conditions of employment, unless it is agreed otherwise. 

Your line manager will arrange to meet with you within 28 days of receiving 
the written request. The purpose of the meeting will be to explore the 
working arrangement requested in more detail, discuss how best it may be 
accommodated together with possible alternative working arrangements in 
the event that it is not possible to agree the working arrangements originally 
requested. 

Employers can only refuse requests if there are business reasons for doing so 
which must be from the following list:

 the burden of additional costs 

 an inability to reorganise work amongst existing staff 

 an inability to recruit additional staff 

Page 67



4

 a detrimental impact on quality

 a detrimental impact on performance 

 detrimental effect on ability to meet customer demand 

 insufficient work for the periods the employee proposes to work 

 a planned structural changes to the business.

You will be informed of the  decision in writing within 14 days after the date 
of the meeting. This letter will either confirm the new working arrangements 
agreed to, or will set out the reasons why the application cannot be accepted. 
You will also be advised of your right of appeal. 

You must appeal within 14 days of the application being rejected.  Within a 
further 14 days, a meeting will be set up to discuss the grounds of appeal.  
Within a further 14 days after the appeal meeting the Council will deliver the 
decision.  These time limits may be extended by mutual agreement although 
the law requires the process to be completed within three months of the 
request being received ~(this includes any appeals).

Page 68



5

Appendix 1.   Application Form for Flexible Working

Employee Name

Post Title

Service Area

Payroll Number

Line Manager Name

Date request submitted:  

I wish to submit a request for flexible working as detailed below.

Have you submitted a previous request for flexible 
working? (If yes, please answer the next question.)

Yes No

When did you submit your last request for flexible 
working?  

Pattern of working

Please state the pattern of working you are seeking by providing information 
under one or more of the following three headings:

1. I would like to reduce my working hours.  Detail your current 
number of hours worked per week and the number of hours you would 
like to work per week.

2. I would like to alter the days I work and / or the timing of my 
working hours. Please indicate the days / times of day you would like 
to work per week.

 

Page 69



6

3. I would like to do all / some of my work from home.  Please be 
precise about the number of hours and days / times of the week you 
would like to work at home.

 

 

 

I would like the above change(s) to my working 
pattern to take effect on:       /       /  

Please state the impact, if any, that you think the changes you are 
requesting will have on the Council's ability to run its operation and 
on your service area, your team, your colleagues, etc.

 (continue on separate sheet if necessary)
 

Please state how you think any such impact might be countered?

I am submitting a flexible working request. The Council will contact me to 
arrange a meeting, which will take place within 28 days of this application 
being submitted, to discuss the new pattern of working I have requested. If 
my request is granted, it will change the terms and conditions of my 
employment, normally for a minimum of 12 months, unless agreed 
otherwise. 

I have provided as much information as I can about my desired working 
pattern, including how it will meet the Council’s needs and objectives.

Signed: Date:

Page 70


	Agenda
	4 Corporate Director Recruitment
	JD - Corporate Director Place May 2017
	Corp Dir Place P Spec

	5 Family Friendly Policy and Procedures
	App 1 - Family Friendly Employment Policy v1 0
	App 2 - Shared Parental Leave Procedure V0 4 180417
	App 3 - Maternity Leave v0 4  240317
	App 4 - Paternity Procedure v3. 240317
	App 5 - Maternity and Adoption Support Leave Procedure  v0 4  240317
	App 6 - Parental Leave Procedure v0 4  240317
	App 7 - Flexible Working  Procedure v0.4  240317


